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The history of this large marketplace, first known as
the Fondouk el-Ghalla (the fruit market), then as the
Central Market, goes back to the late 19t century. It
is located near Bab el-Bahr, the eastern gate of the
city, and is among the first structures built outside
the walls of the Medina, in a district developed under
the French protectorate in Tunisia (1881-1956). One
of the first mentions of the market appears in the
1884 decree establishing its regulations. On a
tourist map from 1888, it is designated as the “new
market” and represented as a large plot of land on
which a small building stands. The great edifice
of today is dated 1891 by architectural historians.
Although the date has not been corrobarated by
architectural drawings, it nevertheless corresponds
to the year when the government began to supervise
the market (January 1, 1891). The new edifice was
in fact built with government funds. In 1918, it was
turned over to the municipality of Tunis.

The first construction housed a vegetable market
and a fish market. The building is organized the same
way as the older fondouks. The covered areas are
arranged along streets surrounding a large central
courtyard. The north wing is made of two food halls
standing side by side; the other wings have only one
hall. In the western half of the courtyard, an isolated
hall houses the fish market.

The building decoration is sober. It is based on the
use of the local ornamental repertoire: the flights of
arcades opening onto the courtyard are horse-
shoe arches standing on rectangular pillars. Each
arch belongs to a panel, or alfiz, the border of which
is emphasized by a ceramic tile frieze forming blue
and white chevrons. Recalling the ceramic workshops
traditional in this region (Qallaline in Tunis Medina),
tiles with a cross-shaped pattern called “jneh khotifa,”
also blue and white, are placed on the spandrels of
the highest arches. The upper part of the arches in the
covered hall is closed with a ironwork grill with a radial
pattern that emphasizes the horseshoe shape of the
arches. The tops of the walls are crenellated with py-
ramidal merlons, called Sassanid merlons, common in
Tunisian medieval architecture.

The compound is one of the first examples of neo-
Moorish style construction carried out in Tunis after
the protectorate was established. It has recently been
attributed to the architect Henri Saladin, who also
designed the post office on the same street (1893) in
a neo-classical style identical to the style of metropo-
litan French public buildings. It should nevertheless
be noted that unlike the post office, the marketplace
is not mentioned by Saladin in his book Tunis et
Kairouan (1908).

In any case, the use of forms that could be seen in
local architecture in Tunis might attest to Saladin’s i
nterest in the Islamic architecture of the region. He
devoted a study to the subject, published as a book,
Manuel d’art musulman in 1907, with Gaston Migeon,
a curator at the Louvre Museum. In 1899, at the
request of produce vendors who needed to “keep
their products in the shade,” the government made
plans to erect new “hangars in the Fondouk
courtyard.” At the end ofthe year 1900, construction
of the first covered pavilion began. It is made of tall
wooden trusses assembled in the workshop and
resting on granite piers. A postcard showing the
two pavilions, sent in 1906, confirms that they had
been completed by then. Unlike the rest of the
edifice, they are covered with a tile roof made of
four long panels with a double skylight. They bear
no neo-Moorish decoration.

In 1937, the building was remodeled to make access
easier. New doors were created on the western
side and the northern facade was rebuilt. The
neo-Moorish style persisted but this time, it was
tinted with Art Deco. The inscriptions “Central
Market” in Arabic and French, carved onto the
portico entrances on Rue Charles de Gaulle and Rue
d’Allemagne, probably date from this period.

In 1954, plans for a new building that would replace
all of the existing structures were drawn up by
French architect Jean-Pierre Ventre. That market
was never built.

In the 2000s, a non-profit association for the
preservation of the Medina of Tunis overhauled
and modernized the marketplace. The walls were
repainted and all of the outdoor spaces were
covered with a canvas-and-steel structure.
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